
  

 

        

 
  

 
  

 
 

  

 
 
 

 

    

  

   
 

   
  

 

     
    

    
 

   
 

  
    

 
   

 
  

 

  
   

       
    

SC18.1.34 
P: 905-883-6706 
F: 905-883-6703 CHERNIAK LAW 
Jason@CherniakLaw.com PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION http://CherniakLaw.com 

October 15, 2020 

VIA EMAIL: scc@toronto.ca 

Carlie Turpin 
Scarborough Civic Centre 
3rd floor, 150 Borough Dr. 
Toronto, ON M1P 4N7 

Dear Councillors: 

RE:	 1090011 Ontario Limited submission re: draft Golden Mile Secondary Plan 
Scarborough Community Council Meeting, October 16, 2020, Item SC18.1 

My File No.: 00005.00004 

Further to my submissions of July 16, 2020, I am writing as the lawyer for 1090011 Ontario 
Limited, commonly known as The Eglinton Town Centre (the “ETC”).  In response to staff, I 
made further submissions on August 10, 2020.  I also forwarded the attached letters from my 
client’s Real Estate Economist, Randy Grimes, and engineer, Scott Cole.  Unfortunately, City 
staff did not respond to multiple requests to meet virtually with us.  This was quite disappointing. 

ETC’s current lands are located on the south side of Eglinton Avenue East, west of Lebovic 
Avenue.  They are in the Draft Secondary Plan’s proposed General Employment Zone. Many of 
the tenants are major retailers, including Old Navy, Cineplex Odeon and Party City.  My client 
initially proposed to build residential, but the City denied that application.  As a result, the site 
was not cleaned to a residential standard and retail has been constructed. Detailed transportation 
planning was completed for the revitalization to support these uses and my client has already 
provided community benefits.  After cooperating and providing these benefits to the City, the 
proposed Secondary Plan would make the retail development unviable in the future. 

These lands were developed by ETC and Lebovic Avenue was constructed to service the 
abandoned General Motors site to permit the TTC depot, Rona Home Centre, Canadian Tire and 
The Eglinton Town Centre.  As part of the approval, ETC was to be reimbursed for this 
infrastructure through the TSI charge by the City, which has not been done.  A security was 
posted with the City to ensure the construction of Lebovic Avenue.  Even though it was 
completed 15-years ago and accepted by the City, as explained by Mr. Cole, the City has still not 
released the security or paid the full amount owing under the TSI. 

The Centre was completed under a site-specific policy and zoning by-law which is still in force. 
The new comprehensive zoning by-law excluded this land to allow for the completion of the 
Centre. It also shares joint facilities with Canadian Tire that effect access, parking and 
maintenance, all of which would be negatively impacted by this plan.  My client expects the City 

Suite 209  10909 Yonge Street Richmond Hill  Ontario L4C 3E3 

mailto:scc@toronto.ca
http:http://CherniakLaw.com
mailto:Jason@CherniakLaw.com
http:SC18.1.34


  
 

         

 
 

 
  

 
   

    
    

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
 

     
      

    
    

  
 

     
    

       
  

        
  

   
    

 
   

  
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
  

 

Page 2 of 2 

to support the continued development and success of the ETC without creating negative impacts 
or disruptive roads and parks that would ruin this development. 

The specific policies that pose problems for my client include: 

1) To remain viable, the Centre needs to be able to grow without development applications. 
Policies 4.6, 6.5, 6.10. 6.21 and 13.24 should not apply to the Centre’s lands.  

2) In the employment lands, Policy 4.7 should allow new retail development of up to 50,000 
square feet. 

3) It was always contemplated that the Centre would use surface parking.  Policy 7.21 
should not apply in the employment lands. 

4) As noted above, the Centre has already provided significant public realm enhancements 
at the request of the City.  Policy 13.7 should not apply to the Centre’s lands. 

5) A new public road on the property would impact the viability of the development. The 
plan should be amended to exclude a public road and park on this property. 

My client still maintains that a proper resolution would be to remove the Centre entirely from the 
Draft Secondary Plan and leave it with the existing approved site-specific secondary plan and 
zoning by-law approved by the Ontario Municipal Board (the “OMB”).  This will allow for the 
completion and maintenance of the commercial developments, which were recognized for 
revitalizing the Golden Mile 

ETC has worked cooperatively with the City to redevelop the Golden Mile and it seems only fair 
that the City continue to abide by its side of the agreement, by leaving my client’s zoning as 
agreed and approved by the former OMB. The City has an obligation to support the existing 
development, which has provided a TTC location and major taxes and development charges over 
the years, and not undercut the viability of this development by creating a public road right 
through a newly constructed plaza.  The City would be in further breach of its obligations by 
refusing residential development when requested, but now requiring amendments to support 
dense residential development by others afterward. 

I ask that you please instruct staff to meet with my client and work out some of these issues 
before any final consideration of this proposed Secondary Plan. 

Yours truly, 

Cherniak Law Professional Corporation 
per: 

Jason Cherniak 
Barrister and Solicitor 
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